THE PARISH CHURCH,

OR many years there stood on the east side of the Churchyard
a rude structure called a Chapel of Ease, the sacred meeting-
place of worshippers who dwelt at too great a distance from
the Parish Church of Kirkmichael to be able to attend it
regularly, Only at the secason of Communion in the summer.
time did they take the long journey through the hills to join
in the celebration, when eervices were held each day from
Thursday to Monday. For the rest of the year the minister held
& monthly service in the Chapel at the Spital. Of the plainest
possible description, it did little more than shelter the worshippers
from the weather. A century ago it gave place to the present
Church, but its appearance has been preserved to us by the
pen of one of the greatest of Scottish poets and song writers.
‘The Ettrick Shepherd visited the Spital in the beginning of
last century, and in 1829 he ibuted to the Edinburgh
Literary Journal & series of Anecdotes of Highlanders, in which
he described the Church as he had seen it. “ About thirty
years ago,” he writes, I visited tho Spital of Glenshee, and
at that time I never had seen a greater curiosity than the place
of worship there. It is a Chapel of Ease belonging to a parish
called Kirkmichael, is built with stone and lime, and the roof
is flagged with slate. The door was locked, but both the windows
were wide open, without either glass or frame, so that one
stepped as casily in at the windows as at the door. There
were no seats, but here and there a big stone placed, and, as
things of great luxury, there were two or three sticks laid from
one of these to another.” His description of the carthen floor
is distasteful and will not bear repetition. When we remember
that there was no proper supervision exercised over an outlying
chapel, it is not to be wondered at that, at thaé date, it could
be said regarding some of these, as Jacob said at Bethel—
“How dreadful is this place!" But the article continues—
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Jamesa Robertson, Slochnacraig.
William Grant, Spital of Glenshee.
Thomas Howison, Spital of Glenshee.
John Robertson, Reinalaidth.

John Campbell, Dalnaglar.

The names of those who granted an endowment to the
parish from their lands are :—James Farquharson of Invercauld,
William Macdonald Macdonald of St. Martins, and George Clark
of Dalnaglar. Colonel Maodonald also granted a bond for a
sum of money to maintain the Church buildings in & proper
atate of repair. There is abundant evidence of the need of
such a fund, for the winter storms put a severe strain upon all
the buildings. One hears every few years of roofs being blown
off some of the cottages, and others being partially damaged by
the foroe of the tempest. One of the ministers, in asking the
heritors Lo erect a porch at the front-door of the Manse, supported
his application by the that “ frequently the winds

ping from Glentai h and Glenbeg, met at his door
and howled like very devils.” It is gratifying to record that
his application was willingly granted.

The Church is no longer an unsightly building, as James
Hogg described it & century ago, but as it should be, “a holy
and beautiful House."

By the kind thought of Sir Archibald Birkmyre, Bart., it was
re-decorated a year or two ago on the occasion of the unveiling
of a handsome bronze tablet to the memory of the men of Glen-
ahee and the Blackwater who gave their lives for King and
Country in the Great War.

The service was held on 19th September, 1921, when the
Rev. John Thomas, M.A., minister of the parish, presided.
Lieut.-Colonel McKenzie Smith of Finegand delivered the
culogium, Lady Birkmyre gracefull iled the 1
and the Rev. T. D. Millar, M.A., a former minister of the parish
preached and dedicated it.

Colonel McKenzie Smith, in his address, said it was an
evidence of the widespread nature of the war that no plice wes
too remote not to have its memorial to those brave men who
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“ When the service was ended the mini hered the colk

for the poor on the green, in the crown of his hat, and neither
men nor women thought of dispersing, but steed in clubs about
the chapel, conversing, some of them for upwards of an hour.
I have seen many people who appeared to pay more attention
to the service, but I never saw any who appeared to enjoy the
crack after sermon so much.”

But the Ettrick Shepherd was evidently not aware when he
wrote the article that since he had visited the Spital a new
Church had been erected, and the old and unseemly edifice had
been pulled down. There is a minute preserved of a meeting
of the contributors and subseribers to the fund for the erection
of a new Church, held on the 14th September, 1822, Major
Roberteon of Cray being in the chair, to the effect that it was
agreed to take over the from the contractors as ** well
finished and complete.”” The ing afterwards proceeded to
allocate the sittings among the various proprietors and others.
Major Robertson was at that time building a new mansion-house
at Cray, and was residing during the operations at Runnavey,
a mile and a half from the Spital. A propossl had been made
to erect the new Church there, as being & more central situation,
and this had met so much favour from the residents at the
south end of the glen that a start had been made with the
building. But the fairies, who interested themselves then in
local affairs more than they do now, did not approve of the
proposed change, and when the masons started building they
came by night and pulled down what had been built up ; and
this was continued night after night, until the committee realised
the futility of opposing the wishes of the “ little folks,” and the
new building was accordingly erected in the neighbourhood of
the old one. Glenshee was erected into a parish, Quoad Sacra,
in 1858. The names of the trustecs in the constitution are as
follows :—

William Macdonald Macdonald of Rossie and St, Martins.
James Fargubarson of Invercauld,

William Smith of Finnegand.

George Clark of Dalnaglar.

William Shaw, Finnegand,
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hod been willing to lay down their lives for their King and
Country. The list of names on the Jocal memorial fell into two
classes of soldicrs—thoss of the original British Army, and
those, the larger number, of the New Armies. Of the exploits
and traditions of the old British Army it was not necessary to
say much, The Expeditionary Force was probably as well
equipped and as efficient and devoted as any force ever raised
in the United Kingdom. Though paratively few in ber,
they had what appeared an almost impossible task at the
commencement of the war, in facing the enormous hordes of
the German Army. They accomplished their task, and stopped
the rush, and saved the situation in the first nine or kwelve
months of the war, but in doing so they perished in the act.
Yor all practical purposes they were wiped out. It is probable
that of thoso who died few would have wished » better fate.
The Expeditionary Force was succecded by soldiers of an
entirely different class, civilians for the most part, and their
sacrifice was very great. Those ted with the Territorial
Army knew from private knowledge of the immense sacrifices
made by those men, and of the civilian careers that were roined.
They entered a profession with which they had never thought
“they would have anything to do, and faced discomfort, discase,
wounds and death. It was rather difficult to trust to this
F jon to esti the t of sacrifice made by the
British Nation, but it may be that later on others looking at
these memorials would form some idea of what was done, and
take steps to secure that a recurrence of such a war was
impossible. It was difficult to say anything in presence of those
who had lost relatives, but one would like to express sincere
sympathy with them, and hope that their sorrow would be
tempered by the thought of the proud achievement of those
who had 0 nobly done their duty. In asking Lady Birkmyre
1o unveil the memorial, he would like to refer to the very great
interest she and her husband had taken in the crection of the
memorial and the re.decoration of the Church.

The inscription and pames recorded on the tablet nre as
follows :—
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1914.1919. To the Glory of God, and in Honour of all
from the Parishes of Persie and Glenshee who served in
the Great War, and in memory of the following who fell :—

Lieut, E. W, Chapman, 3rd Dragoon Guarda.

Lieut. A. MacKenzie, R.F.C.

Lieut. P, J. C. Wilson, Q.0. Cameron Highlanders,
2nd Lieut. Alister Duff, 1/7 Scottish Rifles, Cameronians.
Sergt.-Major D. Cameron, Cameron Highlanders,

Sgt. R. Lamond, Canadians.

Lee.-Cpl. P. Cameron, Royal Scots Fusiliers.
. J. Duif, Black Watch,

. G. Reid, Cameron Highlanders.

. M. K. McLennan, K.O.Y L1

. D. G. Cuthbert, Scottish Rifles.

. M. Nicholson, H.L.T,
D.

=

bemon, Seaforths.

. Robertson, Royal Scots Fusiliers,
Mitchell, Royal Scots.
Stewart, Black Watch.
Cameron, Cameron Highlanders.
G. Anderson, Motor Transport, R.A8.C.
Black, R.AM.C.
McDonald, British Columbia Horse,
H. Murray, Canadian Overseas Force.
R. Reid, Royal Warwickshire,
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Tpr. M. G. Gillespie, Scottish Horse.

It has been deemed geemly and right that we should give
all the honour we can confer—

" To those wha died
In the full splendour of heroic pride,
That we might live.”
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cordial and kindly feelings existing between the two Churches.
He was not a controversinlist, and was not to enter into any

he never believed Y ever
accomplished anything, and they were getting tired of it—but

“here was a task that waa facing them in Scotland, the evangelisa-

tion of thiy dear lnnd, and of the lands beyond the seas. It was
high time they stopped critically examining one another, and
closed their ranks, and stood solid in front of the task to which
they were called. He could not for the life of him see what
was to hinder them. Good would come to their beloved land
through the cleser drawing together of the Churches.”

Dr. Inch came as the harbinger of a brighter and happier
day, bearing testimony to the increasing desirc among the
people for a closer spiritual fellowship. The Union of the
Churches will not have the effect of closing any place of worship
in the Glen, for the UF. Church of Cray is five miles distant
from the Parish Church, and will still be required in providing
ordinances for a wide district. Formerly people went long
distances, eight and ten miles, to the Church, but the taste for
such Ssbbath-day’s journeys is dying out, and for children and
elderly persons such distances on foot are not in reason. But
the main thing, so far as the Glen is concerned, is that union
will remove a standing reproach and a cause of division, and
the parish will then be able to lay stronger claim to its alternative
title, the ** Vale of Peace,” for the inhabitants will be banded
together in the fellowship of devotion, keeping “ the Unity: of
the Spirit in the bond of peace”

LisT oF THE MINISTERS OF GLENSHEE FROM
Fasti Beclesias Scoticannae.

Jaxss Mrromeza, lieepand by the Preabytery of Seirling, 1827; ordained
April, 1846,

Geosox Mevzms, ordained 1851 ; admitted the first miniter of the Parish,
1858 ; died 1870.

Daviv Coorzr, B.A., ordained sssistant and suomssor, 1869; tranalated to
Tynron, Dumfricaahire, 1871; died at Selkirk, 1913

Gronax Raoss, licensed by the Presbytery of St. Andrews; ordained, 1871
tranalated as assistent and successor to the South Porish, Aberdeen,
1876 ; atod to Hoddam, sesshine, 1678 ; died 1599,
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Lady Ashmore, the name of one of whose sons, a gallant
Camcron Highlander, fills & place on the Roll of Honour, in
her volume, Songs of Glenshee und Other Poems, in tho poem
entitled “ A Highland Memorial," gives a brief description of
the service in Persie Church, and epitomises the address delivered
on the occasion in the lines :(—

" Eteensl hooour to the brave—the brove
Who hoard the call and anawered with their lives ;
Wo will remember thems and all they gave
While memory survivea.”

Another interesting service, worthy of being recorded, was
held in the Parish Church a few vears ago. Ever since the
year 1843, when the controversy regarding the election of
ministers to vacant parishes, which had been carried on for a
century or more, reached a climax in the formation of the Free
Church, thahmonyundpeaesoirumlplwos not lees than
the large centres of p ion, had been d bed by opposil
ecclesiaatical opnmona The effect of this even reached to the
family circle, so that, in some cases, the members could not
see their way to walk “to the House of God in company.”
But after the passing of the Act for the abolition of Patronage
in 1874, the reason for the two Churches remaining apart was
nobsopmtwthopublwmmdaaxthndprenomlybcm,md
mthchtwrymssuongdeawiorumonmdmpmmm

ifested itself, and a joint isting of the leading
clerical and lay m:mbca of both Churches, has been in existence
fora.numbe:otyem endeavouring to arrange the terms of
union, o that the causes of separation and dispeace may be
removed. A year or two ago the Moderstor of the United Freo
Church, the Rov. Dr. Inch, conducted the service in the Parish
Church, and the Church was filled with members of all the
Presbyterian Churches, as well as of other denominations. Tt
was reported in the British Weskly that *“ the Glen turned out
en masse.” Such a congregation had not been seen in the little
Church for four-score years, Dr. Inch referred on the occasion
to the atrong feeling that existod a¢ the present time for a union
between the Church of Scotland and the United Free Church.
“He took cvery opportunity,” he said, *of testifying to the
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Tuouas Duscax Morzr, M.A., liceasmd by the Poubytery of Perth, 1876 ;
Rayal Bounty Missionary, Little Dunkeld, 1878; crdoined, 1877;
translated to Kirkurd, Peeblesahire, 1881 ; retired, 1919.

Tromas Cuawrorn, M.A, B.D., licensed by the Presbytery of Perth, 1870;
ordsined, 1881; died, 1902.

Gronos Viarew, M.A, ordained, 1902 ; teansdated to Collacs, Porthshire, 1008,

Joms TiionzoN, M.A., licenaed by the Presbytery of Aberdeen, 1897 ; assistant
Drardee Parish Church ; ordained, 1005,

The following i L g the fi
of the Free Church at Crny m 1843 were kmdly suprplwd by the
late Rev. J. F. Ross, M.A., formerly minister of the U.F, Church,
Dalmuir, Presbytery of Dumbuton, who was translated to
Cray in 1924 :—

“ About a month previ to the Disrup

were formed both in Glenshee and Blackwater, and in this way
wias the district prepared in some for that bl
and important crisis. The first sermon after this event was
preached by the Rev. Robert McDonald of Blairgowrie, in
1843, from II. Kings, viii, 13, first clause. The Sacrament of
the Lord's Supper was dispensed in the open air, on Sabbath
the sixth day of August, 1843, The Rev. Andrew Bonar of
Collace presided, and was assisted by Revs. Messrs, Gillies
of Rattray and McDonald of Blairgowrie. The dispensation of
this ordinance, nad the granting of  site for a Church, by Major
Robertson of Cray, were the principal means of forming tho
adherents into a distinet congregati No regular mini 1
services, however, were obtained until October, when Mr.
William Brown, preacher of the gospel, was appointed by the
Preshytery to officiate for a month, and at the request of the

T this app was d from month to
month, when a unanimous call was given him by the congregation,
The call having been accepted by him and sustained by the
Presbytery, aﬂer the usual inations, he was ordained pastor
of the congreg The ordination took place on Thursday
the 8th day of May, 1844, The Rev. Arch. Fergusson, Alyth,
preached, and the Rev. John Duncan, D.D., Professor of Hebrow
and Oriental Languages, delivered the charges. A Session was
formed, ete.”
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The minutes were signed by Rev. Wm. Brown until 1853,
when there occurs n gap of eight years. The death of Rev,
Wm. Brown, first minister, iz minuted as occurring 20th April,
1853, On 16th June, 1853, the election of Mr, James Robertson
is rocorded,  The minute of 15th July, 1894, is signed by Rev.
James Robertson, that of 2ad August, 1804, by Rev. Charles
Swanson, On 6th June, 1894, it was intimated that the request,
of the Church for a colleague and successor had been granted,
Mr, Swanson was then called.

Mr. Swanson's death was intimated on 22nd February, 1924,
in & Session meeting held at Leyhillock. Rev. James Fleming
Ross, M.A., was welcomed ns minister for a period of two and
a half years, minimum, at & Jarge and enthusiastic social meeting
held in the Church, 3Ist October, 1924,

Mr, Ross’s health failed the following year and tho buring
of the Mange, which cccurred in December, 1925, with the loss
of all his books, sermons, and other MSS. proved more than his
weakened system could stand, and he never did duty again.
He and his wife heard a noise above them in the early hours
of the morning and thought it was their maid moving about,
Shortly afterwards Mr. Ross looked out of the window and saw
the glow of the fire, which had a strong hold of the upper parf;
of the house, They then realised that the noise above was bits
of the'roof falling on to the floor above their heads. The maid
was sent to Dalnaglar Farm (Mr. Robb) to give the alarm,
and Mrs, Ross helped her husband to get dressed {owing to his

ippled dition he required assi )} and they hurried out
by the back door.  As they left, the flames were already breaking
through to the lower floor. By the time Mr. Robb from the
farm, and later Major Don, his gardener, Mr, Straiton, from
Cray, arrived they found the building was a roaring furnace.
Nothing but a few things from the half-burnt kitchen could be
saved. They saved nothing but the clothes they wora and only
had time to put on a bare minimum of thess. They were given
shelter and breakfast at Dalnaglar Farm by Mr. and Mrs. Robb.
Major and Mrs. Don, having more room to accommodate them,
moved them to Cray after breakfust, and it was proposed that
they should go to Alyth to relations next day. A snowstorm
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came on and they had to stay » week | It was only by strenuous
digging on the part of the roadmen and others that they got
away then, on a sleigh supplied by Mr. J. Fleming, Coldrach
(son of Leyhillock), Mr. Ross being unable to walk. They
removed to Alyth in this way on Christmas morning, 25th
December. Mr. Ross died about » month later—having never
recovered from the shock.

The burning papers, cte., flew far over Cray House, down to
the river south of Cray Haugh. But for the snow on the trees
and ground, the Cray woods would probably have caught fire.
The suceessor of Mr, Roes in Cray is the Rev. J. Richmond,
M.A., who was translated from the UF. Church of Wormit,
near Dundee.




